

DISABILITY AND COMMUNICATION ACCESS BOARD

1010 Richards Street, Rm. 118 • Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 Ph. (808) 586-8121 (V) • Fax (808) 586-8129 • (808) 586-8162 TTY

MINUTES

Disability and Communication Access Board General Meeting

Location: Virtual via Zoom and 1010 Richards Street, Room 118

Date: November 16, 2023

Time: 11:00 a.m.

PRESENT: Violet Horvath, Chairperson; Scott Fleming, Marie Kimmey, Michael Nojima,

Gerald Ohta, Teri Spinola-Campbell, LisaAnn Tom, Charlotte Townsend, Board Members; Kirby Shaw, Kristine Pagano, Bryan Mick, Rodney Kanno, Sue

Radcliffe, Amanda Kaahanui, Scott Castor, Staff

ABSENT: Anthony Akamine, Ron Awa, Rosanna Daniel-Kanetake, Dean Georgiev, Gerald

Isobe, Nikki Kepo'o, Summer Kozai, Board Members

GUESTS: Peter Fritz; Donald Sakamoto, Citizens for a Fair ADA Ride; Curt Kiriu; Alberto

Perez de Jesus, Hawaii Pacific University; Brian Hauser, Aloha Independent

Living Hawaii

SIGN LANGUAGE

INTERPRETERS: Mala Arkin and Jackie Emmart

REAL TIME

CAPTIONERS: April Chandler and Kelly DeCamp

- I. Chairperson Violet Horvath called the meeting to order at 11:06 a.m. She provided information on testimony or comments presented by the public.
- II. Roll was called and Board members, staff, and guests introduced themselves. No quorum achieved.
- III. Statement from Public and Written Testimonies Submitted (no quorum)

The following are notes of the testimony and presentations received in compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes §92-2.5(d).

Kirby Shaw reported that staff received one (1) written testimony from Peter Fritz. Guest Peter Fritz shared his concerns regarding the language that is being used on State departments/entities agendas and notices of meetings for accommodation requests. The concern is that requests must be made by a particular date without elaborating. He sent out some sample reasonable accommodation request language from the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) that clarifies what information should be provided and that late requests will be accepted.

Based on Guest Peter Fritz's comments, Board member Teri Spinola-Campbell questioned whether DCAB could draft a request to the Governor to issue an Executive Order with the appropriate reasonable accommodation request language.

Guest Peter Fritz commented that different agencies have different rules for administrative directives. The FCC language would be appropriate as an agency would need to try and accommodate the request up to the time of the meeting/event.

Rules on Public Testimony and Office of Information Practices Guidance. Kirby Shaw explained that members of the public who attend meetings may ask questions of board members and staff in testimonies. Once members of the public are done with their testimony that is it, unless the board members request additional information from a member of the public. There is no requirement under the Sunshine Law that there be a response to the questions. This is the guidance from the Office of Information Practices (OIP). The public does not have a right to engage in deliberations with the board.

<u>Submit Testimony Webpage demonstration</u>. Bryan Mick shared a demonstration of a new web page for the public to submit testimony to the Board. He indicated that the web page is similar to what the Legislature and the County Councils use. It could be published now if there are no changes.

Board member Charlotte Townsend said that the form should be accessible and usable to persons with disabilities. Previously dropdown menus on forms were not ADA compliant for persons with visual impairments.

Guest Peter Fritz had a comment on accessibility of the web page. He suggested that DCAB contact the Office of Enterprise Services (ETS) or the consultant they use to test pages for accessibility.

Courtesy letters to departments and agencies regarding public notice and agenda accessibility issues. Kirby Shaw reported can this that DCAB is developing a cover letter and form that would indicate where the request for accommodation statement is deficient if a public entity's meeting notice or agenda does not contain adequate information (i.e., contact name, phone number, email address, etc.) to notify the public of their ability to request an auxiliary aid, service, or other accommodation.

Guest Peter Fritz commented that OIP should handle anything that's missing required by Chapter 92-7, and that DCAB should focus on complying with disability laws.

IV. Approval of Annual Planning and General Board Meeting Minutes of July 20, 2023

Agenda item was taken out of order and discussed when Board member LisaAnn Tom joined and quorum was achieved.

The minutes of the Annual Planning meeting held on July 20, 2023 were approved as circulated (M/S/P Ohta/Fleming). The minutes of July 20, 2023 General meeting were approved as circulated (M/S/P Townsend/Ohta).

V. Executive Director's Report

Agenda items were taken out of order and discussed when Board member LisaAnn Tom joined and quorum was achieved.

Kirby Shaw reported that staff provided a presentation to the Maui County Council Committee Water Authority, Social Services and Parks on DCAB's parking program. The Committee was considering a bill to expand their volunteer parking enforcement program to include other traffic violations.

Kirby Shaw reported that DCAB was able to connect Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) personnel with disabilities advocates, especially families and individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing to assist with recovery. DCAB connected families of children with disabilities to services, and tried to connect mental health therapists who are fluent in American Sign Language (ASL) to the deaf and hard of hearing community. He stated that County of Maui Division of Motor Vehicles waived the fee for a replacement parking placard lost in the fires. Guest Donald Sakamoto asked if a person had special license plates which were destroyed in the fires, would the replacement fee be waived. Kirby Shaw said it was his assumption without knowing more that the fee would be waived.

Guest Curt Kiriu said that there's a lot of housing proposals coming up due to the fires. However, the homes may not be accessible. We should be proactive in providing a positive input/recommendations to developers regarding housing accessibility.

Guest Peter Fritz commented that the building code contains accessibility requirements; so, if you're building something new there are certain requirements.

Guest Brian Hauser said that they are reviewing housing and programs, what's working and what's falling short. They have worked with the State Developmental Disabilities Council and have worked with nine (9) survivors from the deaf community on an iPad program. They have a presentation coming up to look for solutions for housing, not just individual homes, temporary shelters, and permanent shelters, but really a whole community. The presentations have ASL interpreting and are recorded.

Board member Charlotte Townsend said adaptability is everything. She suggested working with a national veteran's organization, American Vets. They have done wonderful things with adaptability and new construction for disabled veterans far beyond what the local community does in the housing and real estate market.

Kirby Shaw said that staff provided ADA Title II training to the University of Hawaii at Hilo faculty, administrators, and staff. There will be another presentation in Spring 2024.

Kirby Shaw commented on two (2) bills passed by the 2023 Legislature, Act 019, SLH 2023 (SB 1513), which requires a board to report its discussion and any final action it took in an executive session when it reconvenes in public session and Act 125, SLH 2023 (HB 712 HD1 SD1), which encourages boards to keep recordings of remote meetings online, requires a copy of a recording be sent to the State Archives before a board removes a remote meeting recording from its website, and requires the beginning of a board's written minutes to include a link to an electronic audio or video recording of the meeting if such a recording is available online. He indicated that as of now, DCAB will keep the meeting recordings on our website. Guest Peter Fritz asked for clarification between the difference of a recording and a transcript; this may be something the Board can look into. Guest Donald Sakamoto asked if the state has a backup system should the website get hacked. Kristine Pagano said that the State has a backup system.

Board member Charlotte Townsend left the meeting. Loss of quorum. The following are notes of the testimony and presentations received in compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes § 92-2.5(d).

Update on Act 172, SLH 2022 – Hawaii Electronic Information Technology Accessibility Act – Working Group progress on developing the "Hawaii Electronic Information Technology Disability Access Standards." Kirby Shaw reported that ETS in consultation with DCAB is developing a standard for accessible websites and web content. DCAB has been meeting with ETS on a regular basis and is waiting on ETS to issue a letter to

prospective group members to provide input on the draft standard. Guest Donald Sakamoto asked if there is a timeline for implementation of the standard. Guest Peter Fritz said there was not particular timeline and asked how the report would be published.

Personnel (Recruitment for the Planner/ADA Coordinator, Communication Access Specialist, Program Support Technician I positions – Update. Kirby Shaw reported that the office is still recruiting for the Planner/ADA Coordinator, Communication Access Specialist, and Program Support Technician I positions. He announced that Rodney Kanno is the new Facility Access Coordinator, effective today, November 15, 2023.

Videos on Civil Rights in American Sign Language for persons who are Deaf, Hard of Hearing, and DeafBlind. Kirby Shaw reported the publishing of a series of videos on civil rights in American Sign Language (ASL) for persons who are deaf, hard of hearing and deaf-blind. The development of the videos was a collaboration between the Hawaii Civil Rights Commission (HCRC) and DCAB. The videos cover individual rights, communication access discrimination, employment discrimination, and housing discrimination, as well as filing a complaint for HCRC. The videos are posted on the HCRC and DCAB websites.

Training sessions for State ADA Coordinators and employees on making web content accessible for persons with disabilities – Update. Kirby Shaw said that he will report about the virtual training sessions on making web content accessible under ADA Coordination.

VI. Committee Reports

Board member Charlotte Townsend left the meeting. Loss of quorum. The following are notes of the testimony and presentations received in compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes § 92-2.5(d).

A. Executive Committee (no quorum)

No meeting held. No report.

B. <u>Legislative Committee (no quorum)</u>

Kirby Shaw said that in preparation for the upcoming legislative session, a December Committee meeting is planned.

No quorum. Agenda items were deferred until next meeting.

C. <u>Standing Committee on Communication Access (no discussion)</u>

No meeting held. No report.

D. Standing Committee on Facility Access (no discussion)

No meeting held. No report.

E. Standing Committee on Parking (no discussion)

- Report of the Committee meeting held on November 9, 2023.
- Proposed parking related legislation for the 2024 session. A travel bill that
 would establish a disability travel placard to be issued to an existing permittee
 for use at the travel destination and a minibus parking bill that would (1)
 authorize the Examiner of Drivers to suspend the driver's license of a person

who violates certain regulations relating to the use of disability parking permits, (2) require the court to distribute fifty per cent of any fine imposed on a person who violates certain regulations for the use of disability parking permits to the law enforcement agency that issued the citation, (3) authorize each county to enact ordinances to enforce the design and construction requirements for the provision of accessible parking spaces, including the establishment of penalties for failure to comply with the ordinances, and (4) authorize officials appointed by a county to enter the property of places of public accommodation to enforce violations of the county ordinances.

- Statistics on the issuance of disability parking permits.
- Report on the number of submissions via the webpage to report the misuse
 of disability parking permits and the webpage to report reserved parking
 spaces for persons with disabilities that do not comply with the Americans
 with Disabilities Act and or State design requirements.
- Statistics on the number of emails sent to permittees regarding a pending disability parking permit expiration.
- Update on letter to ADA Title III entities with 100 or more parking spaces
 requesting additional accessible spaces and informing them of a voluntary
 information sign that can be placed at their van accessible parking spaces to
 notify permittees that the priority for using such spaces is for vehicles with a
 side mounted lift/ramp.
- Update on procurement of placards and decals.
- Update on crosscheck of DCAB Parking Database with the Office of Vital Records Deceased Residents Database.
- F. Standing Committee on Transportation (no discussion)
 - Report of the Committee meeting held on November 9, 2023.
- G. Special Parent Information Network (no discussion)
 - Working with the Civil Rights Compliance Branch (DOE) Work Group.
 - SPIN's participation in the Maui Ohana Resource Fair
 - SPIN Conference Update

VII. Old Business

Agenda item taken out of order. The following are notes of the testimony and presentations received in compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes § 92-2.5(d).

A. <u>ADA Coordination (no quorum)</u>

Review Statistics of ADA technical assistance program. Kirby Shaw reported that staff responded to over fifty six (56) technical assistance requests. Types of requests for technical assistance included: captioning services, limitations on accommodations, whether hostels are covered under the ADA, access to a bark park, relocation of public parking at a state facility, DCAB Programs and Services Manual, service animals, and guidance on the provision of auxiliary aids and services at public meetings or events. State ADA Coordinators meetings were held on July 11, 2023 and October 10, 2023 and the County ADA Coordinators meetings were held on July 13, 2023 and October 12, 2023.

Guest Peter Fritz shared that he spoke with someone from Civil Beat on the Sunshine Law, and he commented that if there's no quorum you can listen to testimony but can't ask questions, and that's consistent with the OIP opinion. He also requested a copy of the transcript of the meeting.

Making web content accessible for persons with disabilities training sessions for ADA Coordinators. Kirby Shaw reported that Aurora Design and Consulting, LLC, provided training to State ADA Coordinators on making web content accessible for persons with disabilities. The sessions would be helpful to learn skills on making documents videos, tables, forms, PowerPoint presentations, livestreaming accessible for persons with disabilities.

Guest Donald Sakamoto commented he hoped that the counties were involved in the training. He has had obstacles in getting accessible documents from the City.

VIII. New Business (no discussion)

No quorum. Agenda items were deferred until next meeting.

A. Report on the U.S. Department of Justice, Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability; Accessibility of Web Information and Services of State and Local Government Entities.

IX. Open Forum (no quorum)

Board member Charlotte Townsend left the meeting and as a result there was no quorum. The following are notes of the testimony and presentations received in compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes § 92-2.5(d).

Guest Donald Sakamoto said he attended a meeting of the Statewide Elections Accessibility Needs Advisory Committee. It's important that persons with disabilities have access to the elections, especially with electronic balloting.

Guest Curt Kiriu suggested if the Board could discuss at a future meeting to establish an ADA department or office, staffed with experienced ADA planners whose main responsibility is to prepare prior to or respond at a moment's notice to each neighbor island county.

- X. The next meeting is scheduled for January 18, 2024 beginning at 11:00 a.m.
- XI. The meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m.

NOTE: All votes were unanimous unless otherwise noted.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ CINDY Y. OMURA